

Senate Calendar

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 21, 2010

SENATE CONVENES AT: 8:30 A.M.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

ACTION CALENDAR

UNFINISHED BUSINESS OF TUESDAY, APRIL 20, 2010

Third Reading

S.R. 17 Waivers to 21-year old minimum drinking age.....	1405
H. 524 Interference with or cruelty to a guide dog	1405
Senator Campbell Amendment	1405
Senators Campbell and Miller Amendment	1406
H. 527 Municipal recovery of costs of fire department response	1408
H. 759 Executive branch fees.....	1408
H. 771 Approval of amendments to the charter of the town of Stowe.....	1408

Second Reading

Favorable

H. 689 The Uniform Common Interest Ownership Act.....	1408
H. 774 Approval of amendments to the charter of the city of South Burlington	1408
H. 775 Technical changes to the records management authority of the Vermont state archives and records administration.....	1409
H. 788 Approval of amendments to the charter of the town of Berlin.....	1409

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

H. 213 Fairness to tenants in cases of contested housing security deposit withholding.....	1409
H. 578 Requiring all state law enforcement officers to serve under the direction and control of the commissioner of public safety	1410

House Proposal of Amendment

S. 264 Stop and hauling charges..... 1410
 Senator Giard Amendment..... 1410

S. 282 Updating and clarifying provisions regarding commercial driver
licenses and commercial motor vehicles 1411

H. 765 Establishing the Vermont agricultural innovation authority 1418

NEW BUSINESS

Third Reading

H. 784 The state’s transportation program..... 1418
 Senator Campbell Amendment 1418
 Senator Illuzzi Amendment 1419
 Senator Sears Amendment..... 1419

NOTICE CALENDAR

Second Reading

Favorable

H. 725 Farmers’ markets 1420

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

H. 790 Capital construction and state bonding 1420
 Senator Illuzzi Amendment 1440

ORDERED TO LIE

S. 99 Amending the Act 250 criteria relating to traffic, scattered development,
and rural growth areas 1441

S. 110 Sheltering livestock 1441

S. 226 Medical marijuana dispensaries 1441

H. 331 Technical changes to the records management authority of the Vermont
State Archives and Records Administration..... 1441

ORDERS OF THE DAY

ACTION CALENDAR

UNFINISHED BUSINESS OF TUESDAY, APRIL 20, 2010

Third Reading

S.R. 17.

Senate resolution urging Congress to authorize alternative waivers to the 21-year-old minimum drinking age that do not entail federal highway funding penalties for states.

H. 524.

An act relating to interference with or cruelty to a guide dog.

**PROPOSAL OF AMENDMENT TO H. 524 TO BE OFFERED BY
SENATOR CAMPBELL BEFORE THIRD READING**

Senator Campbell moves that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: By adding a new section to be Sec. 3 to read:

Sec. 3. 20 V.S.A. § 3621 is amended to read:

§ 3621. ISSUANCE OF WARRANT TO IMPOUND, ~~DESTROY~~;
COMPLAINT

(a) The legislative body of a municipality may at any time issue a warrant to one or more police officers or constables, or pound keepers, or elected or appointed animal control officers, directing them to proceed forthwith to destroy in a humane way or cause to be destroyed in a humane way impound all dogs or wolf-hybrids within the town or city not licensed according to the provisions of this subchapter, except as exempted by section 3587 of this title, and to enter a complaint against the owners or keepers thereof. A dog or wolf-hybrid impounded by a municipality under this section may be transferred to an animal shelter or rescue organization for the purpose of finding an adoptive home for the dog or wolf-hybrid. If the dog or wolf-hybrid cannot be placed in an adoptive home or transferred to a humane society or rescue organization within ten days, or a greater number of days established by the municipality, the dog or wolf-hybrid may be destroyed in a humane way. The municipality shall not be liable for expenses associated with keeping the dog or wolf-hybrid at the animal shelter or rescue organization beyond the established number of days.

(b) A municipality may waive the license fee for the current year upon a showing of current vaccinations and financial hardship. In the event of waiver

due to financial hardship, the state shall not receive its portion of a dog license fee.

Second: By adding a new section to be Sec. 4 to read:

Sec. 4. 13 V.S.A. § 351(4) is amended to read:

(4) “Humane officer” or “officer” means any law enforcement officer as defined in 23 V.S.A. § 4(11), auxiliary state police officers, deputy game wardens, humane society officer, animal control officer elected or appointed by the legislative body of a municipality, employee or agent, local board of health officer or agent, or any officer authorized to serve criminal process.

and that after passage the title of the bill be amended to read: “An act relating to interference with or cruelty to a guide dog, warrants to impound a dog or wolf-hybrid, and the definition of ‘humane officer’”

PROPOSAL OF AMENDMENT TO H. 524 TO BE OFFERED BY SENATORS CAMPBELL AND MILLER BEFORE THIRD READING

Senators Campbell and Miller move that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by adding three new sections to be Secs. 3, 4, and 5 to read:

Sec. 3. FINDINGS

The general assembly finds that:

(1) Cebus appella monkeys, commonly known as capuchin monkeys, are used, when highly trained, by the group Helping Hands: Monkey Helpers for the Disabled, a national nonprofit based in Boston, to serve people who are paralyzed, suffer from multiple sclerosis, are quadriplegic, or have other severe spinal cord injuries or mobility impairments by providing assistance with daily activities.

(2) By breeding these monkeys in captivity, raising, and specially training these monkeys to act as live-in companions over the course of 20–30 years, these groups provide independence and companionship to the people they help.

(3) Many states allow capuchin monkeys to be imported, by permit, for purposes of this service. States that have laws exempting the monkeys from their wild animal importation ban include Georgia and California.

(4) According to Helping Hands: Monkey Helpers for the Disabled, their monkeys reside in a closed colony under tight security in a specialized facility in the Boston area. The monkeys do not have exposure to other non-colony primates. The monkeys receive thorough and comprehensive veterinary care while at the training center and after placement, including regular testing for tuberculosis and intestinal parasites. No recipients or care giver has been injured or contracted an infectious disease from these monkeys.

(5) Helping Hands: Monkey Helpers for the Disabled's monkeys are New World primates which originate in South America. All monkeys are bred specifically for the program and none are taken from the wild. The monkeys are not infected with the well-known pathogens Herpes B or SIV, which are carried exclusively by Asian and African (Old World) primates. The capuchin monkeys are significantly smaller and more docile than Old World primates.

Sec. 4. PILOT PROGRAM FOR IMPORT OF ASSISTANCE ANIMALS: CAPUCHIN MONKEYS

(a) A pilot program, for importing highly trained Cebus appella monkeys into Vermont, is established for the purpose of providing animals for assistance of persons with a permanent disability or disease.

(b) The commissioner shall issue a permit under 10 V.S.A. § 4709 to two different Vermont residents for the import into the state of an animal in the genus Cebus appella (capuchin monkeys), provided that the applicant for the permit establishes that:

(1) the applicant has a permanent disability or disease which interferes with the person's ability to perform one or more routine daily living activities;

(2) the animal for which the permit is to be issued has been trained to assist the person in performing his or her daily living activities;

(3) the animal will be humanely treated and will not present a threat to public health or safety;

(4) the animal for which the permit is sought is the only wild animal to be possessed by that person;

(5) the applicant does not have a history of animal cruelty under chapter 8 of Title 13;

(6) the animal is being provided by a nonprofit charity or organization dedicated to providing animals for assistance of persons with permanent disability or disease; and

(7) the applicant provides an official health certificate from a veterinarian licensed in the state of the animal's origin certifying that the animal is free of visible signs of infections or contagious or communicable disease.

(c) An animal imported under a permit issued under this section shall:

(1) be treated humanely; and

(2) be kept only in the residence of the permittee except as necessary for veterinary services.

(d) When transported into the state, an animal imported under a permit issued under this section shall be transported in a U.S. Department of Agriculture-approved animal carrier.

(e) When an animal imported under a permit issued under this section is no longer in service to the applicant, the animal shall be returned within seven days of the end of service to the nonprofit charity or organization that provided the animal.

(f) Report. On or before January 15, 2014, the commissioner shall report to the senate committee on judiciary on all aspects of the pilot program's implementation, including public health and safety concerns, and on recommendations for legislative proposals or permitting processes, if any.

Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect upon passage.

H. 527.

An act relating to municipal recovery of costs of fire department response.

H. 759.

An act relating to executive branch fees.

H. 771.

An act relating to approval of amendments to the charter of the town of Stowe.

Second Reading

Favorable

H. 689.

An act relating to the Uniform Common Interest Ownership Act.

Reported favorably by Senator Cummings for the Committee on Finance.

(Committee vote: 7-0-0)

H. 774.

An act relating to approval of amendments to the charter of the city of South Burlington.

Reported favorably by Senator Flanagan for the Committee on Government Operations.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

H. 775.

An act relating to technical changes to the records management authority of the Vermont state archives and records administration.

Reported favorably by Senator White for the Committee on Government Operations.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

H. 788.

An act relating to approval of amendments to the charter of the town of Berlin.

Reported favorably by Senator Doyle for the Committee on Government Operations.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

H. 213.

An act to provide fairness to tenants in cases of contested housing security deposit withholding.

Reported favorably by Senator McCormack for the Committee on Finance.

(Committee Vote: 6-0-1)

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Campbell for the Committee on Judiciary.

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by adding a new section to be Sec. 2 to read as follows:

Sec. 2. 9 V.S.A. § 4467 is amended to read:

§ 4467. TERMINATION OF TENANCY; NOTICE

(a) Termination for nonpayment of rent. The landlord may terminate a tenancy for nonpayment of rent by providing actual notice to the tenant of the date on which the tenancy will terminate which shall be at least 14 days after the date of the actual notice. The rental agreement shall not terminate if the tenant pays or tenders rent due through the end of the rental period in which payment is made or tendered. Acceptance of partial payment of rent shall not constitute a waiver of the landlord's remedies for nonpayment of rent or an accord and satisfaction for nonpayment of rent.

* * *

(Committee vote: 4-0-1)

(No House amendments.)

H. 578.

An act relating to requiring all state law enforcement officers to serve under the direction and control of the commissioner of public safety.

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator White for the Committee on Government Operations.

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by adding a Sec. 2a to read:

Sec. 2a. COMMISSIONER OF PUBLIC SAFETY; REPORT

The commissioner of public safety shall file a report with the house and senate committees on government operations by January 15, 2011. The report shall explain the commissioner's efforts to develop criteria to measure the reduction of redundancies and the increase in communication as set forth in Sec. 1 of this act. The report shall also recommend improvements in the command and coordination of Vermont law enforcement agencies.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for March 9, 2010, page 356.)

House Proposal of Amendment

S. 264

An act relating to stop and hauling charges.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill by striking Sec. 5 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This bill shall take effect upon passage, except that Sec. 2. (amendment to 6 V.S.A. § 2676, mandating that cost of hauling to be paid by buyer) shall take effect when New York and Pennsylvania require, by legislative or administrative enactment of statewide applicability and enforcement, that dairy hauling costs be paid by the purchaser of cows' milk rather than the producer of the milk.

**PROPOSAL OF AMENDMENT TO S. 264 TO BE OFFERED BY
SENATOR GIARD ON BEHALF OF THE COMMITTEE ON
AGRICULTURE**

An act relating to stop and hauling charges.

Senator Giard, on behalf of the Committee on Agriculture, moves that the Senate concur in the House proposal of amendment with further amendment as follows:

By striking out Sec. 5 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 5 to read as follows:

Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect upon passage, except that Sec. 2 (amendment to 6 V.S.A. § 2676, mandating that the cost of hauling shall be paid by the buyer) shall take effect when New York requires, by legislative or administrative enactment of statewide applicability and enforcement, that dairy hauling costs shall be paid by the purchaser of the cows' milk rather than by the producer of the cows' milk.

S. 282

An act relating to updating and clarifying provisions regarding commercial driver licenses and commercial motor vehicles.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill by striking all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 23 V.S.A. § 4103(4)(B)(iii) is amended to read:

(iii) ~~military~~ equipment owned or operated by the United States Department of Defense, including the National Guard, and operated by noncivilian personnel or by National Guard military technicians (civilians who are required to wear military uniforms) and active duty U.S. Coast Guard personnel;

Sec. 2. 23 V.S.A. § 4110(a)(6)(C) is amended to read:

(C) the applicant is not subject to any disqualification under 49 C.F.R. ~~part 385.51~~ section 383.51, or any license suspension, revocation, or cancellation under state law; and

Sec. 3. 23 V.S.A. § 4111(a) and (f) are amended to read:

(a) Contents of license. A commercial driver's license shall be marked "commercial driver license" or "CDL," and shall be, to the maximum extent practicable, tamper proof, and shall include, but not be limited to, the following information:

* * *

(2) The person's color photograph or imaged likeness. A person issued a license under this subsection ~~that contains an imaged likeness may renew his or her license by mail. Except that a renewal must be made in person so that an updated imaged likeness of the person is obtained no less often than once~~

every eight years may renew the license not earlier than six months prior to its expiration date. In such case, the prior license document shall be surrendered. The renewed license shall be effective from the date of issuance to the end of the period for which it is renewed.

* * *

(f) When applying for renewal of a commercial driver license, the applicant shall complete the application form required by section 4110 of this title, providing updated information and required certifications. If the applicant wishes to retain a hazardous materials endorsement, the written test for a hazardous materials endorsement must be taken and passed. In addition, the applicant must successfully complete the security threat assessment required by 49 C.F.R. part 1572. Within 15 days of an adverse initial or final determination of threat assessment being served by the United States Transportation Security Administration, the applicant's hazardous materials endorsement shall be revoked or denied.

Sec. 4. 23 V.S.A. § 4112 is amended to read:

§ 4112. RECORDS; NOTIFICATION

(a) After suspending, revoking, or disqualifying a person from holding a commercial driver license, the commissioner shall update his or her records to reflect that action within 10 days. After suspending, revoking, or disqualifying a nonresident commercial driver's privileges, the commissioner shall notify the licensing authority of the state which issued the commercial driver license or commercial driver certificate within 10 days.

(b) When the commissioner receives a request for an operating record of a person currently or previously licensed in Vermont, the commissioner shall provide the information within 30 days.

Sec. 5. 23 V.S.A. § 4113 is amended to read:

§ 4113. Notification of traffic convictions

When a person who holds a commercial driver license issued by another state is convicted in this state of any violation of state law or local ordinance relating to motor vehicle traffic control, other than parking violations, in any type of vehicle, the commissioner shall notify the driver licensing authority in the licensing state of the conviction within ~~30~~ 10 days.

Sec. 6. 23 V.S.A. § 4116(d) and (k) are amended to read:

(d) A person shall be disqualified from driving a commercial motor vehicle for a period of 60 days if convicted of two serious traffic violations, or 120 days if convicted of three serious traffic violations, arising from separate

incidents occurring within a three-year period. A disqualification for 120 days shall be issued to be consecutive with any previous disqualification.

(k) A person shall be disqualified for a term concurrent with any disqualification or suspension issued by the administrator of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration pursuant to 49 C.F.R. ~~part~~ section 383.52.

Sec. 7. 23 V.S.A. § 4119 is amended to read:

§ 4119. COMPLIANCE WITH OUT-OF-SERVICE ORDER; DISQUALIFICATION FROM OPERATION OF VEHICLE

(a) No person shall operate a commercial motor vehicle in violation of an out-of-service order.

(b) Any person convicted for violating an out-of-service order shall be disqualified as follows except as provided in subsection ~~(b)~~(c) of this section:

(1) A person shall be disqualified from driving a commercial motor vehicle for a period of ~~90~~ 180 days if convicted of a first violation of an out-of-service order.

(2) A person shall be disqualified for a period of ~~one year~~ two years if convicted of a second violation of an out-of-service order during any ten-year period, arising from separate incidents.

(3) A person shall be disqualified for a period of three years if convicted of a third or subsequent violation of an out-of-service order during any ten-year period, arising from separate incidents.

~~(b)~~(c) Any person convicted for violating an out-of-service order while transporting hazardous materials or while operating a commercial motor vehicle designed or used to transport ~~15~~ 16 or more passengers, including the driver, shall be disqualified as follows:

(1) A person shall be disqualified for a period of 180 days if convicted of a first violation of an out-of-service order.

(2) A person shall be disqualified for a period of three years if convicted of a second or subsequent violation of an out-of-service order during any ten-year period, arising from separate incidents.

Sec. 8. 23 V.S.A. § 4120(a) and (b) are amended to read:

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, any driver who violates or fails to comply with an out-of-service order is subject to a penalty ~~of \$1,500.00~~ for a first conviction or for a second or subsequent conviction at the applicable minimum level set forth in 49 C.F.R. section 383.53(b)(1), in addition to disqualification under this chapter.

(b) Any employer who violates an out-of-service order, or who knowingly requires or permits a driver to violate or fail to comply with an out-of-service order, is subject to a penalty of ~~\$4,000.00~~ for a first conviction or for a second or subsequent conviction at the applicable minimum level set forth in 49 C.F.R. section 383.53(b)(2).

Sec. 9. 23 V.S.A. § 102(a) is amended to read:

(a) The commissioner shall:

* * *

(9) Issue nondriver identification cards; and

(10) Maintain commercial driver records and driver identification data in accordance with the provisions of 49 C.F.R section 384.231(d).

Sec. 10. 5 V.S.A. § 2001(d) and (f) are amended to read:

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter or other law whether general, special, or local, violations of any rules promulgated pursuant to this section involving the operation of a motor vehicle may be charged through the use of a traffic complaint prescribed by the supreme court pursuant to ~~23 V.S.A. § 2303~~ 4 V.S.A. § 1105.

(f) The regulations promulgated by the ~~Materials Transportation Bureau of the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration, United States Department of Transportation contained in Parts 170-189~~ 100-199 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations revised as of ~~December 31, 1976~~ October 1, 2007, and any amendment or addition to these regulations, and the regulations promulgated by the ~~Bureau of Federal Motor Carrier Safety, Federal Highway Administration, United States Department of Transportation contained in Parts 390-397~~ of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, revised as of October 1, ~~1976~~ 2008, and any amendment or addition to these regulations and any provisions of any other regulations regarding the transportation of hazardous materials adopted by a federal agency may be adopted by the secretary of transportation.

Sec. 11. 5 V.S.A. § 2101(d) and (e) are amended to read:

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter or other law whether general, special, or local, violations of any rules adopted pursuant to this section involving the operation of a motor vehicle may be charged through the use of a traffic complaint prescribed by the supreme court pursuant to ~~23 V.S.A. § 2303~~ 4 V.S.A. § 1105.

(e) The regulations promulgated by the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration, United States Department of Transportation contained in parts 40, 350, 360, 365, 372, 381-383, ~~386-388~~ 385-388, 390-397, and 399 of Title

49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, revised as of October 1, ~~2002~~ 2008, and any amendment or addition to these regulations may be adopted by the secretary of transportation.

Sec. 12. 23 V.S.A. § 114(a)(21) is amended to read:

(21) Records not otherwise specified ~~4.00~~ 6.00 per page

Sec. 13. 23 V.S.A. §§ 453 and 459 are amended to read:

§ 453. FEES AND NUMBER PLATES

* * *

(g) The commissioner of motor vehicles shall not issue a dealer's certificate of registration to a new or used car dealer, unless the dealer has provided the commissioner with a surety bond, letter of credit, or certificate of deposit issued by an entity authorized to transact business in the same state. The amount of such surety bond, letter of credit, or certificate of deposit shall be between ~~\$5,000.00~~ \$20,000.00 and ~~\$15,000.00,~~ \$35,000.00 based on the number of new or used units sold in the previous year; such schedule is to be determined by the commissioner of motor vehicles. In the case of a certificate of deposit, it shall be issued in the name of the dealer and assigned to the commissioner or his or her designee. The bond, letter of credit, or certificate of deposit shall serve as indemnification for any monetary loss suffered by the state or by a purchaser of a motor vehicle by reason of the dealer's failure to remit to the commissioner any fees collected by the dealer under the provisions of chapters 7 and 21 of this title or by a dealer's failure to remit to the commissioner any tax collected by the dealer under chapter 219 of Title 32. This state or the motor vehicle owner who suffers such loss or damage shall have the right to claim against the surety upon the bond or against the letter of credit or certificate of deposit. The bond, letter of credit, or certificate of deposit shall remain in effect for the pending registration year and one year thereafter. The liability of any such surety or claim against the letter of credit or certificate of deposit shall be limited to the amount of the fees or tax collected by the dealer under chapters 7 and 21 of this title or chapter 219 of Title 32 and not remitted to the commissioner.

§ 459. NOTICE TO COMMISSIONER

(a) Upon issuing a number plate with temporary validation stickers, temporary number plate, or decal to a purchaser for attachment to a motor vehicle, a dealer shall, within ~~three business~~ 15 calendar days, forward to the commissioner the application and fee, deposited with him or her by the purchaser, together with notice of such issue and such other information as the commissioner may require.

(b) If a number plate with temporary validation stickers, temporary registration plate, or decal is not issued by a dealer in connection with the sale or exchange of a motor vehicle, the dealer may accept, from the purchaser, a properly executed registration, tax and title application, and the required fees for transmission to the commissioner. The dealer shall, within ~~three business~~ 15 calendar days, forward to the commissioner the application and fee together with such other information as the commissioner may require.

Sec. 14. 23 V.S.A. § 1129(a) is amended to read:

(a) The operator of a motor vehicle involved in an accident whereby a person is injured or whereby there is total damage to all property to the extent of ~~\$1,000.00~~ \$3,000.00 or more shall make a written report concerning the accident to the commissioner of motor vehicles on forms furnished by the commissioner. The written report shall be mailed to the commissioner within 72 hours after the accident. The commissioner may require further facts concerning the accident to be provided upon forms furnished by him or her.

Sec. 15. 23 V.S.A. § 1222(c) is amended to read:

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a) of this section, an exhibition vehicle of model year 1940 or before, registered as prescribed in section 373 of this title or a trailer registered as prescribed in subdivision 371(a)(1)(A) of this title shall be exempt from inspection; provided, however, the vehicle must be equipped as originally manufactured, must be in good mechanical condition, and must meet the applicable standards of the inspection manual.

Sec. 16. 23 V.S.A. § 2017(b) is amended to read:

(b) The commissioner shall maintain at his or her central office a record of all certificates of title issued by him or her:

~~(1) Under~~ for vehicles 15 years old and newer under a distinctive title number assigned to the vehicle;

~~(2) Under~~ under the identification number of the vehicle;

~~(3) Alphabetically~~ alphabetically, under the name of the owner; and, in the discretion of the commissioner, by any other method he or she determines. The original records may be maintained on microfilm or electronic imaging. ~~and, in the discretion of the commissioner, by any other method he or she determines. The original records may be maintained on microfilm or electronic imaging.~~

Sec. 17. REPEAL

23 V.S.A. § 735 (motorcycle rider training program advisory committee) and chapter 20 of Title 23 (interstate compact for motor vehicle safety equipment) are repealed.

Sec. 18. 23 V.S.A. § 305 is amended to read:

§ 305. – WHEN ISSUED

* * *

(c) The commissioner may issue number plates to be used for a period of two or more years. One validating sticker shall be issued by the department of motor vehicles upon payment of the registration fee for the second and each succeeding year the plate is used. ~~No~~ Except as otherwise provided in subsection (d) of this section, no plate is valid for the second and succeeding years unless the sticker is affixed to the rear plate in the manner prescribed by the commissioner.

(d) When a registration is renewed electronically, a receipt shall be available for printing. The receipt shall serve as a temporary registration. To be valid, the temporary registration shall be in the possession of the operator at all times, and it shall expire ten days after the date of the transaction.

Sec. 19. 23 V.S.A. § 1251 is amended to read:

§ 1251. SIRENS AND COLORED SIGNAL LAMPS

~~No~~ A motor vehicle shall not be operated upon a highway of this state equipped with a siren or signal lamp colored other than amber unless a permit authorizing ~~such~~ this equipment, issued by the commissioner of motor vehicles, is carried in the vehicle. A permit may be transferred following the same procedure and subject to the same time limits as set forth in section 321 of this title. The commissioner may adopt additional rules as may be required to govern the acquisition of permits and the use pertaining to sirens and colored signal lamps.

Sec. 20. EFFECTIVE DATES

(a) Sec. 3 (renewal) shall take effect on July 1, 2011.

(b) This section and Sec. 19 (siren and signal lamp permit transfer) shall take effect on passage.

(c) Secs. 1–2 and Secs. 4–18 shall take effect on July 1, 2010.

and that after passage the title of the bill be amended to read: “An act relating to updating and clarifying provisions regarding commercial driver licenses and commercial motor vehicles and amending miscellaneous motor vehicle laws”

House Proposal of Amendment to Senate Proposal of Amendment

H. 765

An act relating to establishing the Vermont agricultural innovation authority.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the proposal of amendment as follows:

First: In Sec. 1, 6 V.S.A. § 2962, in subdivision (b)(2), by inserting “industry” after “livestock”

Second: In Sec. 1, 6 V.S.A. § 2962, in subdivision (b)(3), by striking “president pro tempore” and inserting in lieu thereof “committee on committees”

Third: In Sec. 1, 6 V.S.A. § 2962, in subdivision (b)(3), by relettering “(C)” to “(B)”

Fourth: In Sec. 1, 6 V.S.A. § 2962, by striking subsection (d) in its entirety and inserting a new subsection (d) to read:

(d) Any vacancy occurring among the members of the board shall be filled by the respective appointing authority pursuant to this section. A board member may be reappointed, provided that no board member, except the secretary of agriculture, food and markets, may serve more than two consecutive three-year terms. Each member of the board shall serve a three-year term, except:

(1) the governor shall appoint initially one member to a one-year term, one member to a two-year term, and two members to a three-year term;

(2) the speaker of the house shall appoint initially two members to a one-year term, one member to a two-year term, and one member to a three-year term; and

(3) the committee on committees shall appoint initially one member to a one-year term, two members to a two-year term, and one member to a three-year term.

NEW BUSINESS

Third Reading

H. 784.

An act relating to the state’s transportation program.

**AMENDMENT TO SENATE PROPOSAL OF AMENDMENT TO
H. 784 TO BE OFFERED BY SENATOR CAMPBELL ON BEHALF OF
THE COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY BEFORE THIRD READING**

Senator Campbell on behalf of the Committee on Judiciary moves to amend the Senate proposal of amendment as follows:

First: By striking out Sec. 39 and inserting a new Sec. 39 to read as follows:

Sec. 39. AUTHORITY OF LAW ENFORCEMENT AND RESCUE PERSONNEL TO ENGAGE IN NEGLIGENT OR RECKLESS CONDUCT IN EMERGENCY AND NON-EMERGENCY SITUATIONS; STUDY

The commissioner of public safety, a designee of the Professional Firefighters of Vermont, the Vermont Bar Association, the Vermont Fire Chiefs Association and the Vermont Association for Justice shall study the need to revisit the standard of care required under § 1015(c) of Title 23, and whether the provisions of § 1015(c) of Title 23 should be extended to on-duty officers in non-emergency situations. The Committee shall report its findings and recommendations to the Senate and House committees on Judiciary on or before April 1, 2011.

Second: By striking out Sec. 40 in its entirety.

AMENDMENT TO SENATE PROPOSAL OF AMENDMENT TO H. 784 TO BE OFFERED BY SENATOR ILLUZZI BEFORE THIRD READING

Senator Illuzzi moves to amend the Senate proposal of amendment as follows:

First: In Sec. 41, 23 V.S.A. § 1251 in the title of the section, after the word “LAMPS” by inserting the following: ; OUT OF STATE EMERGENCY AND RESCUE VEHICLES

Second: In Sec. 41, 23 V.S.A. § 1251 subsection (b) by striking out the following: “out-of-state” and inserting in lieu thereof the following: law enforcement vehicles, after the words “squad members” by inserting the following: which are registered or licensed by another state or province, and after the words “may use sirens and” by striking out the following: red or red and white

PROPOSAL OF AMENDMENT TO H. 784 TO BE OFFERED BY SENATOR SEARS BEFORE THIRD READING

Senator Sears moves that the Senate proposal of amendment be amended in Sec. 41, 23 V.S.A. § 1251(b) in the first sentence, by adding the phrase in Vermont after the phrase “when responding to emergencies”

NOTICE CALENDAR

Second Reading

Favorable

H. 725.

An act relating to farmers' markets.

Reported favorably by Senator Kittell for the Committee on Agriculture.

(Committee vote: 4-0-1)

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

H. 790.

An act relating to capital construction and state bonding.

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Scott for the Committee on Institutions.

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

* * * Capital Appropriations * * *

Sec. 1. STATE BUILDINGS

The following sums are appropriated in total to the department of buildings and general services, and the commissioner is authorized to direct funds appropriated in this section to the projects contained in this section; however, no project shall be canceled unless the chairs of the senate committee on institutions and the house committee on corrections and institutions are notified before that action is taken. The individual allocations in this section are estimates only.

<u>(1) Statewide, asbestos and lead abatement:</u>	<u>300,000</u>
<u>(2) Statewide, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA):</u>	<u>100,000</u>
<u>(3) Statewide, building reuse and planning:</u>	<u>125,000</u>
<u>(4) Statewide, contingency:</u>	<u>500,000</u>
<u>(5) Statewide elevator repairs and upgrades:</u>	<u>350,000</u>
<u>(6) Statewide, major maintenance:</u>	<u>8,003,826</u>
<u>(7) Statewide, major maintenance, VT information centers:</u>	<u>100,000</u>
<u>(8) Statewide: BGS engineering and architectural project</u>	

<u>costs:</u>	<u>2,465,785</u>
<u>(9) Statewide physical security enhancements:</u>	<u>100,000</u>
<u>(10) Montpelier, 116 State St., restore building envelope:</u>	<u>750,000</u>
<u>(11) Montpelier, 133 State St., infrastructure repair:</u>	<u>1,250,000</u>
<u>(12) Montpelier, 120 State St., replace heating system</u>	<u>750,000</u>
<u>(13) Waterbury, steamline extension:</u>	<u>700,000</u>
<u>(14) Waterbury, state office complex fire alarm panels and door</u>	
<u>holders:</u>	<u>250,000</u>
<u>(15) Springfield, state office building, HVAC upgrade:</u>	<u>500,000</u>
<u>(16) Bennington, courthouse and state office building:</u>	<u>6,958,340</u>
<u>(17) Burlington, 32 Cherry St., HVAC upgrades:</u>	<u>500,000</u>
<u>(18) Burlington, 108 Cherry St., HVAC upgrades. The commissioner</u>	
<u>may reallocate funds between this subdivision and subdivision (17) of this</u>	
<u>section as the commissioner finds to be in the best interests of the</u>	
<u>state:</u>	<u>500,000</u>
<u>(19) Bennington, state office building, geothermal energy</u>	
<u>project:</u>	<u>2,000,000</u>
<u>(20) Montpelier, rehabilitation of 128 State Street for the secretary of</u>	
<u>state:</u>	<u>250,000</u>
<u>(21) Montpelier, state house, renovations to restore room 41 for a house</u>	
<u>committee room and to return the Ethan Allen room for use as a conference</u>	
<u>room for general use. Any remaining funds shall be used to renovate</u>	
<u>room 33:</u>	<u>25,000</u>
<u>Total Appropriation – Section 1</u>	<u>\$26,477,951</u>

Sec. 2. ADMINISTRATION

(a) The sum of \$100,000 is appropriated to the department of taxes for the Vermont Center for Geographic Information for an ongoing project to update statewide quadrangle maps through digital orthophotographic quadrangle mapping.

(b) The sum of \$5,000,000 is appropriated to the Vermont telecommunications authority (VTA) to build infrastructure to meet the cellular and broadband needs of unserved Vermonters. To the extent possible, the VTA shall use the funds to leverage drawdown of ARRA funds and to build infrastructure that can be used as a revenue stream to enable use of up to \$40,000,000 in moral obligation bonding allocated to the VTA.

Total Appropriation – Section 2 \$5,100,000

Sec. 3. HUMAN SERVICES

(a) The following sums are appropriated in total to the department of buildings and general services for the agency of human services for the projects described in this section.

(1) Health laboratory design. Site acquisition, permitting, and construction documents for co-location of department of health laboratory with the UVM Colchester research facility: 4,700,000

(2) Vermont state hospital, ongoing safety renovations: 100,000

(3) Corrections, continuation of suicide abatement project: 100,000

(4) Corrections, security upgrades: 200,000

(5) Corrections, grease trap for the Chittenden regional correctional facility: 335,000

(b) The sum of \$10,000 is appropriated to the department of corrections for the study conducted pursuant to Sec. 31 of this act.

Total Appropriation – Section 3 \$5,445,000

Sec. 4. JUDICIARY

The sum of \$750,000 is appropriated to the department of buildings and general services to design and replace the electric boiler and upgrade to a solar energy or biomass system in the Barre district court and office building.

Total Appropriation – Section 4 \$750,000

Sec. 5. COMMERCE AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

(a) The following sums are appropriated in total to the department of buildings and general services for the agency of commerce and community development for the following projects:

(1) Major maintenance at historic sites statewide; provided such maintenance shall be under the supervision of the department of buildings and general services: 250,000

(2) Plymouth Visitors' Center, exhibits and furnishings: 250,000

(b) The following sums are appropriated in total to the agency of commerce and community development for the following projects:

(1) Underwater preserves: 50,000

(2) Placement and replacement of roadside historic site markers: 15,000

Total Appropriation – Section 5 \$565,000

Sec. 6. BUILDING COMMUNITIES GRANTS

The following sums are appropriated for building communities grants established in chapter 137 of Title 24:

(1) To the agency of commerce and community development, division for historic preservation, for the historic preservation grant program: 180,000

(2) To the agency of commerce and community development, division for historic preservation, for the historic barns preservation grant program: 180,000

(3) To the Vermont council on the arts for the cultural facilities grant program: 180,000

(4) To the department of buildings and general services for the recreational facilities grant program: 180,000

(5) To the department of buildings and general services for the human services and educational facilities competitive grant program: 180,000

(6) For the agricultural fairs capital projects competitive grant program. No single entity shall be awarded more than ten percent of this appropriation: 180,000

Total Appropriation – Section 6 \$1,080,000

Sec. 7. EDUCATION

The following is appropriated in total to the department of education for:

(1) State aid for emergency school construction projects pursuant to 16 V.S.A. § 3448(a)(3)(A): 600,000

(2) Emergency shelters in schools: 44,889

(3) The Burlington International airport to continue the process of planning and designing a new aviation technical training center: 150,000

(4) Alternate energy projects pursuant to 16 V.S.A. § 3448(a)(7)(B) which were prioritized for funding by the state board of education for fiscal year 2011. Each project shall receive an equal percentage of the amount owed by the state: 1,157,676

(5) Remaining state aid for school construction projects pursuant to 16 V.S.A. § 3448 which were prioritized for funding by the state board of education for fiscal year 2011, excluding asset renewal projects. Each project shall receive an equal percentage of the amount owed by the state: 5,197,435

Total Appropriation – Section 7 \$7,150,000

Sec. 8. AUSTINE SCHOOL

The sum of \$540,104 is appropriated to the department of buildings and general services for the renovation of Holton Hall at the Austine School.

Total Appropriation – Section 8 \$540,104

Sec. 9. UNIVERSITY OF VERMONT

The sum of \$2,000,000 is appropriated to the University of Vermont for construction, renovation, and maintenance.

Total Appropriation – Section 9 \$2,000,000

Sec. 10. VERMONT STATE COLLEGES

The sum of \$2,000,000 is appropriated to the Vermont State Colleges for major facility maintenance.

Total Appropriation – Section 10 \$2,000,000

Sec. 11. VERMONT INTERACTIVE TELEVISION

The sum of \$290,085 is appropriated to Vermont Interactive Television to purchase equipment, including video upgrades and monitor replacement.

Total Appropriation – Section 11 \$290,085

Sec. 12. NATURAL RESOURCES

(a) The following is appropriated in total to the agency of natural resources for water pollution control projects:

(1) For grants to municipalities pursuant to chapter 55 of Title 10 (aid to municipalities for water supply, pollution abatement, and sewer separations) and chapter 120 of Title 24 (special environmental revolving fund), the Springfield loan conversion, and administrative support under chapter 120 of Title 24. Of this amount and the amount in subdivision (2) of this subsection, up to \$50,000 may be used to provide municipalities with grants or loans for a study of the feasibility and planning of site-appropriate potable water supply and wastewater systems, including innovative decentralized systems, for historic village and existing settled areas. Systems shall be designed to comply with the adopted municipal plan. The agency of natural resources shall have the discretion to determine eligibility for and amounts of funds provided to municipalities for feasibility studies and planning, and shall report to the senate committees on institutions and on natural resources and energy, and the house committees on corrections and institutions and on fish, wildlife and water resources on or before January 15, 2011, regarding how the municipal grant program is working, the demand for the grants, what projects were funded, and anticipated future construction costs of those projects: 2,375,400

(2) For combined sewer overflow projects receiving ARRA funding:

<u>(A) Burlington, Gazo Avenue:</u>	<u>100,000</u>
<u>(B) Burlington, Manhattan Drive:</u>	<u>200,000</u>
<u>(C) Middlebury, pump station work:</u>	<u>450,000</u>
<u>(D) Montpelier, several areas of the city:</u>	<u>138,500</u>
<u>(E) Proctor sewer system rehabilitation:</u>	<u>32,500</u>
<u>(F) Springfield, several areas:</u>	<u>374,000</u>

(3) Interest on short-term borrowing associated with delayed grant funding for the Pownal project: 85,000

(b) The following sum is appropriated to the agency of natural resources for the drinking water state revolving fund. Of this amount, up to \$50,000 may be used to provide municipalities with grants or loans for a study of the feasibility and planning of site-appropriate potable water supply and wastewater systems, including innovative decentralized systems, for historic village and existing settled areas. Systems shall be designed to comply with the adopted municipal plan. The agency of natural resources shall have the discretion to determine eligibility for and amounts of funds provided to municipalities for feasibility studies and planning, and shall report to the senate committees on institutions and on natural resources and energy, and the house committees on corrections and institutions and on fish, wildlife and water resources on or before January 15, 2011, regarding how the municipal grant program is working, the demand for the grants, what projects were funded, and anticipated future construction costs of those projects: 2,175,660

(c) The following sum is appropriated to the agency of natural resources for the clean and clear program for ecosystem restoration and protection. The agency shall use at least \$250,000 of this appropriation to work with the Vermont youth conservation corps on appropriate ecosystem restoration and protection projects: 1,700,000

(d) The following sum is appropriated to the agency of natural resources for the state's year-three share of the federal match to conduct a three-year study of flood-control measures in the city of Montpelier. However, the state shall not enter into any commitment to pay for construction of flood control improvements without legislative approval: 177,000

(e) The following sums are appropriated to the agency of natural resources for the department of forests, parks and recreation:

(1) rehabilitation of small and large infrastructure in the state forests and parks, including wastewater repairs, upgrades of restrooms and bathhouses, rehabilitation of CCC structures, and road restoration: 2,500,000

(2) energy conservation and alternative energy projects at Vermont state

parks: 1,000,000

(f) The following sums are appropriated to the agency of natural resources for department of fish and wildlife projects described in this subsection:

(1) to match federal funding for a lamprey control project: 157,500

(2) Safety improvements at the Salisbury, Bennington, and Bald Hill fish hatcheries: 78,300

(3) Bald Hill fish hatchery, fish production improvements: 120,000

(4) Bald Hill emergency dam repair: 70,000

(5) For the Lake Champlain Walleye Association, Inc. to upgrade and repair the walleye rearing, restoration, and stocking infrastructure. The association shall enter into an agreement with any private landowner whose pond is upgraded, maintained, or built in whole or in part using state funds. The agreement shall provide for a lease of at least 10 years, with the option for renewal, and for mutually agreeable maintenance, repair, and use of the pond. In addition, the Walleye Association shall report in January 2011 to the house committee on corrections and institutions and the senate committee on institutions on use of the funds appropriated in this subdivision: 25,000

(6) For improvement and expansion of existing fishing accesses: 250,000

Total Appropriation – Section 12 \$12,008,860

Sec. 13. MILITARY

The sum of \$850,000 is appropriated to the department of the military for maintenance and renovation at state armories. To the extent feasible, these funds shall be used to draw down federal funds.

Total Appropriation – Section 13 \$850,000

Sec. 14. PUBLIC SAFETY

The following is appropriated in total to the department of buildings and general services for the department of public safety for:

(1) Renovations to the public safety headquarters building in Waterbury: 3,215,000

(2) Purchase of equipment for the fire service training center in Pittsford: 100,000

(3) Conversion to narrowband frequencies for SOV two-way radio systems: 45,000

Total Appropriation – Section 14 \$3,360,000

Sec. 15. CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COUNCIL

The sum of \$1,000,000 is appropriated to the department of buildings and general services for the Vermont Criminal Justice Training Council to complete improvements and repairs to the firing range in Pittsford.

Total Appropriation – Section 15 \$1,000,000

Sec. 16. AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND MARKETS

The following is appropriated in total to the agency of agriculture, food and markets for the purposes described in this section:

(1) For the best management practice implementation cost share program, to continue to reduce nonpoint source pollution in Vermont. For projects paid from this appropriation, cost share funds may be increased to 90 percent of a project: 1,500,000

(2) For the agricultural buffer program, to install water quality conservation buffers: 175,000

Total Appropriation – Section 16 \$1,675,000

Sec. 17. VERMONT PUBLIC TELEVISION

The sum of \$500,000 is appropriated to Vermont Public Television for the state match for the federally mandated conversion of Vermont Public Television’s transmission sites to digital broadcasting format.

Total Appropriation – Section 17 \$500,000

Sec. 18. VERMONT RURAL FIRE PROTECTION

The sum of \$100,000 is appropriated to the department of public safety, division of fire safety for the Vermont rural fire protection task force to continue the dry hydrant program.

Total Appropriation – Section 18 \$100,000

Sec. 19. VERMONT VETERANS’ HOME

The following sums are appropriated in total to the department of buildings and general services for the Vermont Veterans’ Home for the purposes described in this section:

(1) Relocate and replace the transformer: 150,000

(2) Replace gas lines: 170,000

Total Appropriation – Section 19 \$320,000

Sec. 20. VERMONT CENTER FOR CRIME VICTIM SERVICES

The sum of \$50,000 is appropriated to the Vermont Center for Crime

Victim Services for Americans with Disabilities Act improvements at domestic violence shelters. Annually, on or before December 1, the Vermont Center for Crime Victim Services shall file with the commissioner of buildings and general services a report which details the status of the improvements funded in whole or in part by state capital appropriations.

Total Appropriation – Section 20

\$50,000

Sec. 21. VERMONT HISTORICAL SOCIETY

The sum of \$150,000 is appropriated to the department of buildings and general services for a one-to-one matching grant to the Vermont historical society to reduce debt at the Vermont history center in Barre. The department may release the funds to the historical society upon receiving certification that the funds have been matched.

Total Appropriation – Section 21

\$150,000

Sec. 22. HOUSING AND CONSERVATION BOARD

The amount of \$5,000,000 is appropriated to the Vermont housing and conservation board (VHCB) for building and preservation of affordable housing, and for conservation projects. The board shall:

(1) give priority consideration to affordable housing preservation and infill projects in or near downtowns or village centers as well as consider applications to build or renovate housing for elders, supportive housing for persons with disabilities, including chronic mental illness, and individuals and families who might otherwise be homeless;

(2) allocate up to 20 percent of this appropriation for conservation grant awards that will maximize drawdown of federal and private matching funds, particularly federal farmland protection funds allocated to Vermont by the Natural Resources Conservation Service. If less than \$4,000,000 of the state's private activity bond cap is made available to the VHCB for eligible affordable housing investments, VHCB may increase the amount it allocates to conservation grant awards from its capital appropriation, notwithstanding the percentage provided for in this section, provided that VHCB increases its affordable housing investments by the same amount from funds appropriated to VHCB in the FY 2011 Appropriations Act;

(3) allocate \$100,000 of this appropriation for the construction of single room occupancy (SRO) housing for at-risk youth. The board shall give priority to SRO housing that requires as a condition of residency participation in educational, life-skills, and job training and programming and for which rental subsidies will support ongoing operational costs;

(4) leverage federal and private funds to the maximum extent feasible;
and

(5) on or before January 15, 2011, report to the senate committee on institutions and the house committee on corrections and institutions on how the funds appropriated in this section were spent or obligated.

Total Appropriation – Section 22 \$5,000,000

* * * Financing this Act * * *

Sec. 23. REALLOCATION OF FUNDS; TRANSFER OF FUNDS

The following sums are reallocated to the department of buildings and general services to defray expenditures authorized in Sec. 1 of this act:

(1) of proceeds from sale of space in the Emory A. Hebard State Office Building in Newport pursuant to Sec. 37 of No. 62 of the Acts of 1997: 53,478.68

(2) of the amount realized from the sale of land on Swift Street in Burlington pursuant to Sec. 27 of No. 43 of the Acts of 2005: 30,000.00

(3) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 5(a)(1) of No. 147 of the Acts of the 2005 Adj. Sess. (2006) (Lamoille County courthouse): 61,508.11

(4) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 5(d) of No. 147 of the Acts of the 2005 Adj. Sess. (2006) (Grand Isle County courthouse): 8,476.40

(5) of the amount realized from a nonrefundable deposit for purchase of land pursuant to Sec. 25(2) of No. 147 of the Acts of the 2005 Adj. Sess. (2006) (Comfort Hill Road, Vergennes): 3,010.00

(6) of the amount appropriated for dam inspection and repair at the Southeast State Correctional Facility in Windsor pursuant to Sec. 4(4) of No. 52 of the Acts of 2007: 68,868.00

(7) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 4(6) of No. 52 of the Acts of 2007 for security at the Chittenden Regional Correctional Facility: 422.49

(8) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 8(2) of No. 149 of the Acts of the 2001 Adj. Sess. (2002) for a sludge storage facility in Bradford: 42,521.92

(9) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 11(e)(3) of No. 256 of the Acts of the 1991 Adj. Sess. (1992) for grants and loans for solid waste management facilities: 2,704.23

(10) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 19(d)(1) of No. 233 of the Acts of the 1993 Adj. Sess. (1994) for municipal grants and loans for landfill closings: 2,000.00

(11) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 13(b)(4)(B) of No. 62 of the Acts of 1995 for assistance to municipalities for recycling: 25,143.58

(12) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 19(d)(3) of No. 233 of the Acts

- of the 1993 Adj. Sess. (1994) for municipal grants and loans for solid waste management facilities: 23,424.00
- (13) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 10(b)(3) of No. 185 of the Acts of the 1995 Adj. Sess. (1996) for municipal assistance for solid waste management facilities: 9,120.46
- (14) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 10(k) of No. 147 of the Acts of the 2005 Adj. Sess. (2006) to purchase mechanical harvesting equipment: 2,479.03
- (15) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 10(d) of No. 121 of the Acts of the 2003 Adj. Sess. (2004) for a forest plan for the Green Mountain National Forest: 11,921.57
- (16) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 10(o) of No. 121 of the Acts of the 2003 Adj. Sess. (2004) for an engineering study of the state dock in St. Albans: 7,373.00
- (17) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 3(3) of No. 43 of the Acts of 2009 for consideration of how to replace acute intensive psychiatric inpatient services provided at the current Vermont state hospital with services to be provided at the Rutland Regional Medical Center: 250,000.00
- (18) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 10(d) of No. 121 of the Acts of the 2003 Adj. Sess. (2004) for forestry planning: 11,922.00
- (19) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 12(f)(4) of No. 200 of the Acts of the 2007 Adj. Sess. (2008) for the Salisbury fish station generator: 13,119.00
- (20) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 9 of No. 29 of the Acts of 1999 for the Vermont historical society: 29,116.00
- (21) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 3(c)(1) of No. 43 of the Acts of 2005 for a dormitory-style work camp: 41,163.00
- (22) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 9(a)(1) of No. 43 of the Acts of 2009 for water pollution control: 88,879.00
- (23) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 12 (a)(1) of No. 200 of the Acts of the 2007 Adj. Sess. (2008) for water pollution control: 431,538.00
- (24) of the amount appropriated by Sec 4(f) of No. 147 of the Acts of the 2005 Adj. Sess. (2006) for heating and ventilation system for the Northern State Correctional Facility: 6,196.00
- (25) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 10(o) No. 121 of the Acts of the 2003 Adj. Sess. (2004) for the St. Albans engineering study: 7,373.00
- (26) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 23 of No. 148 of the Acts of the

<u>1999 Adj. Sess. (2000) for non-point pollution reduction:</u>	<u>25,947.37</u>
<u>(27) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 5 of No.61 of the Acts of 2001 for non-point source pollution reduction:</u>	<u>87,558.69</u>
<u>(28) of the amount appropriated by Sec. 13 of No. 149 of the Acts of the 2001 Adj. Sess. (2002) for non-point pollution reduction:</u>	<u>13,313.08</u>
<u>(29) of the amount appropriated by Sec.14(a) of No. 63 of the Acts of 2003 for non-point source pollution reduction:</u>	<u>57,885.15</u>
<u>(30) of the amount appropriated by Sec.15 of No.121 of the Acts of the 2003 Adj. Sess. (2004) for non-point source pollution reduction:</u>	<u>170,537.39</u>
<u>Total Reallocations and Transfers – Section 23</u>	<u>\$1,587,000.15</u>

Sec. 24. GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND APPROPRIATIONS

(a) The state treasurer is authorized to issue general obligation bonds in the amount of \$71,825,000 for the purpose of funding the appropriations of this act. The state treasurer, with the approval of the governor, shall determine the appropriate form and maturity of the bonds authorized by this section consistent with the underlying nature of the appropriation to be funded. The state treasurer shall allocate the estimated cost of bond issuance or issuances to the entities to which funds are appropriated pursuant to this section and for which bonding is required as the source of funds, pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 954.

(b) The sum of \$2,000,000 is transferred from the Vermont clean energy development fund established in 10 V.S.A. § 6523 to the department of buildings and general services for the purpose of funding statewide energy efficiencies and renewable projects pursuant to Sec. 1(19) of this act.

(c) The sum of \$1,000,000 is transferred from the Vermont clean energy development fund established in 10 V.S.A. § 6523 to the agency of natural resources for the purpose of energy conservation and alternative energy projects at state parks pursuant to Sec. 11(e)(2) of this act.

Total Revenues – Section 24 \$74,825,000

* * * Buildings and General Services * * *

Sec. 25. PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS; MISCELLANEOUS

(a) Pursuant to 29 V.S.A. § 152(3), the commissioner of buildings and general services is authorized to purchase the land and existing building located at 245 South Park Drive in Colchester.

(b) Notwithstanding 29 V.S.A. § 166, the commissioner of buildings and general services is authorized to sell the land purchased under subsection (a) of this section to the University of Vermont for one dollar, and to enter into a ground lease with the University of Vermont for one dollar for the purpose of

locating the state health laboratory for a minimum of 50 years with an automatic renewal provision. With the advice and consent of the chairs and vice chairs of the house committee on corrections and institutions and the senate committee on institutions, the commissioner shall negotiate the ground lease so that the state will receive services and benefits from the university which will ensure that the land exchange is fair to both parties.

(c) Notwithstanding 29 V.S.A. §§ 166(b) and 165(h), after consultation with the chairs and vice chairs of the senate committee on institutions and the house committee on corrections and institutions, the commissioner of buildings and general services is authorized to sell or enter into a lease purchase agreement at less than fair market value for building #617 in Essex.

(d) Notwithstanding 29 V.S.A. §§ 165 and 166, the commissioner of buildings and general services is authorized to sell to the city of Rutland the former armory building at 62 Pierpoint Avenue in Rutland at the 2010 appraised value. The sale may be a lease purchase agreement that would enable the city to lease the building for up to ten years and that would grant the city the right to purchase the property any time during the ten-year lease for fair market value with all lease payments and improvements to the property, at depreciated value, made by the city to the state being deducted from the purchase price. The lease-to-own agreement shall include a provision that the city shall pay all expenses, including major maintenance. If the commissioner is unable to negotiate a mutually acceptable agreement with the city of Rutland, the commissioner is authorized to sell the building pursuant to 29 V.S.A. § 166. Proceeds of the lease purchase under this subsection shall be paid into a capital fund account pursuant to 29 V.S.A. § 166(d).

(e) Following consultation with the state advisory council on historic preservation as required by 22 V.S.A. § 742(7) and pursuant to 29 V.S.A. § 166, the commissioner of buildings and general services is authorized to subdivide and sell the house, barn, and up to 10 acres of land at 3469 Lower Newton Road in St. Albans.

Sec. 26. USE AND DEVELOPMENT OF STATE FACILITIES AND LANDS

(a) The commissioner of buildings and general services shall work with the town of Windsor to develop a plan for use of state lands adjacent to the southeast state correctional facility in Windsor, and shall consult with the commissioner of forests parks and recreation, and the commissioner of corrections as they develop the plan. The plan shall describe a mixed use of the area which will result in benefits to the town of Windsor, the region, and the state on a sustainable basis. Proposed uses shall be based on the natural attributes of the area so that for example, agricultural uses may be proposed in sections of prime agricultural soils, forestry uses may be proposed in areas

suitable for sustainable tree growth, and housing may be proposed to be clustered near recreational uses. On or before January 15, 2011, the commissioner of buildings and general services and the town of Windsor shall jointly present the plan to the senate committee on institutions and the house committee on corrections and institutions.

(b) The commissioner of buildings and general services shall work with the city of Montpelier to determine whether the state's steam plant could generate electricity and provide heat and water to both state buildings and a portion of the city. If needed, the commissioner is authorized to sign a letter of intent which would support the city of Montpelier's commencement of necessary environmental reviews, if appropriate. However, any letter of intent shall be approved by the chairs of the senate committee on institutions and the house committee on corrections and institutions prior to signature, and no lease transfer or construction shall take place without the authorization of the general assembly.

(c) It is the intent of the general assembly that, as appropriate and feasible, all programs and services of the secretary of state shall be consolidated within the capital complex.

(d) The commissioner of buildings and general services may use up to \$400,000 of unexpended FY10 funds allocated for major maintenance and \$200,000 of funds allocated for major maintenance in FY11 for:

(1) repair of the generator and switchgear of the cogeneration system at the state correctional facility in Springfield; and

(2) up to \$ 200,000 for improvements and upgrades to the municipal water system serving the Springfield correctional facility, provided that the town of Springfield contributes an equal amount of funds for the upgrades and provided that the town of Springfield agrees to accept ownership of the system in accordance with provision #9 of the correctional facility agreement executed between the state and the town on March 30, 1999. However, funds shall be expended under this subdivision only for the remainder of the project after the town has received federal funds for upgrade of the water system.

(e) Notwithstanding 29 V.S.A. § 166, the secretary of the agency of commerce and community development is authorized to enter into a lease with the Calvin Coolidge Memorial Foundation for a portion of the Calvin Coolidge state historic site in Plymouth Notch for use as an educational center for a term of years he or she deems to be in the best interests of the state.

Sec. 27. Sec. 1(8) and (11) of No. 43 of the Acts of 2009 are amended to read:

(8) BGS engineering and architectural project costs. It is the intent of the general assembly that labor and operating costs, such as engineering and

architectural costs, shall not be paid for from bonded funds in the future: 1,950,000 2,408,340

(11) Bennington, 200 Veterans Drive. Demolish and design the rebuilding of the older section of the state office building, ~~excluding and a portion of the courthouse space; renovate the newer section of the building to house programs and services previously located in the building to address water infiltration and indoor air quality issues, consolidate all courthouse functions in an expanded building, enhance energy opportunities, and allow geothermal equipment to be installed under the new space;~~ and build four holding cells, a sally port, and two additional courtrooms without jury facilities for a total of four courtrooms: 8,000,000 7,541,660

Sec. 28. 3 V.S.A. § 2291(e) amended to read:

(e) The commissioner of buildings and general services shall develop life cycle cost guidelines for use in all state buildings. These guidelines shall require all new construction and major renovations to meet or exceed the document titled ~~“The Vermont Guidelines for Energy Efficient Commercial Construction” as published in its most recent edition by the department of public service as that document may be amended~~ current “Vermont Commercial Building Energy Standards.” Where practicable the goal shall be attaining an EPA ENERGY STAR[®] rating of at least seventy-five.

* * * Building Communities Grants * * *

Sec. 29. 24 V.S.A. § 5603 is amended to read:

§ 5603. HISTORIC BARN PRESERVATION GRANT PROGRAM

There is established an historic barns preservation grant program which shall be administered by the division for historic preservation in the agency of commerce and community development. Grants shall be made available to ~~municipalities and nonprofit tax exempt organizations~~ barn owners on a one-for-one matching basis for restoring historic barns.

* * * Commerce and Community Development * * *

Sec. 30. 23 V.S.A. § 3311(d) is amended to read:

(d) Underwater historic preserve area. A vessel shall not be operated in an “underwater historic preserve area” except as provided in this subsection. These areas are historic and archaeological sites located on the bottomlands of the waters of the state and are designated as public recreational areas. The division for historic preservation may designate underwater historic preserve areas and they shall be identified by a floating special purpose yellow buoy marked “State of Vermont Underwater Historic Preserve.” The following requirements shall govern the operation of vessels at the preserves:

(1) a vessel may secure to a yellow buoy only when diving or remotely operated vehicle diving at the preserve. In this subsection, “remotely operated vehicle diving” means using an unstaffed underwater robot to view a preserve site;

(2) ~~only~~ vessels 35 feet in length or less, ~~and only those engaged in diving,~~ may secure to a buoy;

(3) vessels 50 feet in length or less and piloted by a U.S. Coast Guard-licensed captain may secure to a buoy for the purpose of remotely operated vehicle diving;

(4) a divers-down flag shall be displayed whenever a vessel is secured to a buoy;

~~(4)~~(5) on sites with multiple buoys, one vessel may be secured to each buoy;

~~(5)~~(6) when a vessel is secured to the buoy, all other vessels shall remain at least 200 feet from the buoy; and

~~(6)~~(7) anchoring is not permitted within 200 feet of the buoy.

Sec. 31. 10 V.S.A. § 6654(f) is amended to read:

(f) The Vermont economic development authority, VEDA, is authorized to make loans on behalf of the state pursuant to this section. Annually, the secretary of commerce and community development with the approval of the secretary of natural resources in consultation with the VEDA manager shall determine an amount from the brownfield revitalization program that will be available to VEDA for loans. Proceeds from repayment of loans shall be deposited in the brownfield revitalization fund and shall be available for future grants and loans under this section. Loans under this subsection shall be issued and administered by VEDA, provided:

* * *

(2) A loan to an applicant for characterization or assessment may not exceed \$250,000.00 ~~and may be used for characterization, assessment, or remediation.~~ Remediation loans shall not be capped. All loans shall be subject to all the following conditions:

* * *

* * * Vermont Telecommunications Authority * * *

Sec. 32. VERMONT TELECOMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY; USE OF PRIVATE ACTIVITY BONDING AUTHORITY; REPORT

On or before January 15, 2011, the executive director of the Vermont telecommunications authority shall report to the senate committee on

institutions, the senate committee on finance, and the house committee on corrections and institutions on revenues realized from infrastructure built with general obligation bond funds, private activity bonds issued pursuant to 30 V.S.A. § 8064, revenues realized from infrastructure built with private activity bonds, and what is needed to maximize use of the authority's private activity bonding authority.

* * * Natural Resources * * *

Sec. 33. 10 V.S.A. § 1974(4), (5), and (6) are added to read:

(4) The installation or use of a water treatment system for a potable water supply where the treatment system is designed to:

(A) reduce or eliminate water hardness;

(B) reduce or eliminate properties or constituents on the list of secondary standards in the Vermont water supply rules;

(C) reduce or eliminate radon, lead, arsenic, or a combination of these; or

(D) eliminate bacteria or pathogenic organisms, provided that the treatment system treats all of the water used for drinking, washing, bathing, the preparation of food, and laundering.

(5) The installation or use of a water treatment device, provided that the installation or use is overseen by the secretary as a part of a response action due to contamination or the threat of contamination of a potable water supply by a release or threat of release of a hazardous material or any other source of contamination.

(6) The increase in flow to an existing wastewater system as a result of the use of an exempt water treatment system under subdivisions (4) and (5) of this section.

Sec. 34. CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND; INTENDED USE PLAN; AMENDMENTS

(a) The agency of natural resources has written and submitted a clean water intended use plan for submission to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) as part of its annual application for a Clean Water Capitalization Grant. Upon acceptance by the EPA, Vermont expects to be awarded \$12,905,000 which it will distribute through the clean water state revolving fund. The intended use plan describes how these funds will be distributed to municipal projects.

(b) If any of the municipalities allocated a share of the federal funds in the intended use plan are unable to use the funds due to unanticipated delays, or is eligible for other funds which could be used for the project instead of the

federal funds, the agency is hereby directed to submit a plan amendment which will enable it to reallocate those funds to a project on the priority list which will cost more than \$4 million, does not readily qualify for other sources of funding, serves over 2,500 users, is in the economic growth center of the region, and will result in jobs and economic growth.

Sec. 35. POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING LOAN FUND;
DRINKING WATER REVOLVING FUND; LOAN FORGIVENESS

(a) Upon awarding a loan from the Vermont environmental protection agency pollution control revolving fund or the Vermont environmental protection agency drinking water state revolving fund, the secretary of the agency of natural resources may forgive up to 50 percent of the loan if the award is made from funds appropriated from the Federal Fiscal Year 2010 Clean Water State Revolving Fund or Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Grants (FFY2010 CWSRF and FFY2010 DWSRF).

(b) Notwithstanding 10 V.S.A. § 1624a(b), the assistance provided by a loan from the Vermont environmental protection agency pollution control revolving fund made from FFY2010 CWSRF funds may be for up to 100 percent of the eligible project cost.

(c) The secretary shall establish standards, policies, and procedures as necessary for implementing the provisions of this section, for allocating the funds among projects, and for revising standard priority lists in order to comply with requirements associated with the federal FY2010 CWSRF and DWSRF capitalization grants.

Sec. 36. Sec. 8(a)(3) of No. 149 of the Acts of the 2001 Adj. Sess. (2002) is amended to read:

(3) Dams, maintenance and reconstruction; provided \$35,000 of this appropriation shall be made to supplement the \$55,000 federal Land and Water Conservation Fund grant for Harvey's Lake dam to replace the existing dam with an electronically-controlled rubber bladder dam; and provided ~~\$30,000~~ \$58,591 of this appropriation shall be made to enable engineering and design of repairs to abate the imminent hazard posed by the Curtis Pond dam in Calais, with the further provision that the state shall not be liable for any claims that may arise from the work performed at that dam: 300,000

* * * Vermont State Hospital * * *

Sec. 37. VERMONT STATE HOSPITAL; REPLACEMENT

(a) The department of mental health is directed to continue to develop plans for the replacement of state hospital functions consistent with state public policy and the terms of the conceptual certificate of need, including acute specialized and intensive care inpatient hospital beds and any other incomplete

elements of the plan.

(b) The department of mental health shall proceed with further inpatient Phase II certificate of need applications only if the general assembly has identified an acceptable financing plan.

(c) The commissioner of buildings and general services and the commissioner of mental health shall continue to plan, design, and work to obtain permits for a secure residential recovery facility in Waterbury. Notwithstanding Sec. 31(b) of No. 43 of the Acts of 2009, simultaneous with the certificate of need process and prior to applying for a local permit for a new appropriately designed 15-bed secure residential program and facility in Waterbury, the commissioners shall further review all potential building sites within the Waterbury complex and shall consult with the Waterbury village and town officials, and report on the final site to the chairs and vice chairs of the senate committee on institutions and house committee on corrections and institutions on or before July 1, 2010. The facility design shall incorporate the components necessary for the facility to function as a freestanding program that does not rely on support space currently serving patient needs in the existing Vermont state hospital.

(d) The commissioner of mental health shall plan for the replacement of Vermont state hospital inpatient beds in consultation with the following: Brattleboro Retreat, Rutland Regional Medical Center, and Dartmouth Medical School. The commissioner of buildings and general services shall engage in the design of the required space. The commissioner of mental health shall make funds necessary for this work available from funds allocated in the past for planning and replacement of beds at a secure residential facility.

Sec. 38. Sec. 31(d) of No. 43 of the Acts of 2009 is amended to read:

(d) DAIL shall amend by rule pursuant to chapter 25 of Title 3 the licensing requirements for ~~therapeutic community residences~~ residential care homes to provide for the operation of secure residential recovery programs.

* * * Education * * *

Sec. 39. 16 V.S.A. § 3448(a)(7)(C) is amended to read:

(C) The amount of an award shall be 50 percent of the approved cost of a project or applicable portion of a project which results in consolidation of two or more school buildings and which will serve the educational needs of students in a more cost-effective and educationally appropriate manner as compared to individual projects constructed separately. A decision of the commissioner as to eligibility for aid under this subdivision (C) shall be final. This subdivision (C) shall apply only to a project which has received preliminary approval by June 30, ~~2010~~ 2011.

Sec. 40. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY;
SHAFTSBURY/RUTLAND FEASIBILITY STUDY

The department of public safety shall explore opportunities for siting a consolidated police barracks in the Shaftsbury/Rutland area.

Sec. 41. REPEALS

The following are repealed:

(1) 32 V.S.A. § 309(d), relating to emergency operation centers.

(2) Sec. 13(b)(2)(B) of No. 148 of the Acts of the 1997 Adj. Sess. (1998), relating to deed covenants on land which may be conveyed by the state of Vermont to Rutland.

Sec. 42. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on passage.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Illuzzi for the Committee on Appropriations.

respectfully reports that it has considered the same and recommends that the bill be amended as recommended by the of the Committee on Institutions with the following amendments thereto:

First: In Sec. 2, by striking out the Sec. in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 2 to read:

Sec. 2. ADMINISTRATION; VERMONT TELECOMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY; VERMONT CENTER FOR GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

(a) The sum of \$100,000 is appropriated to the department of taxes for the Vermont Center for Geographic Information for an ongoing project to update statewide quadrangle maps through digital orthophotographic quadrangle mapping.

(b) The sum of \$3,000,000 is appropriated to the Vermont telecommunications authority (VTA) to build infrastructure to meet the cellular and broadband needs of unserved Vermonters. To the extent possible, the VTA shall use the funds to leverage drawdown of ARRA funds and to build infrastructure that can be used as a revenue stream to enable use of up to \$40,000,000 in moral obligation bonding allocated to the VTA. These funds shall be spent in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 4 and Sec. 11 of No. 78 of the Acts of the 2009 Adj. Sess. (2010).

Total Appropriation – Section 2

\$3,100,000

Second: In Sec. 25(b) and (c), by striking out the subsections in their entirety and inserting in lieu thereof:

(b) Notwithstanding 10 V.S.A. § 6524, \$2,000,000 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment funds described in 10 V.S.A. § 6523(h) shall be under the authority of the commissioner of buildings and general services and shall be for statewide energy efficiencies and renewable projects pursuant to Sec. 1(19) of this act.

(c) Notwithstanding 10 V.S.A. § 6524, \$1,000,000 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment funds described in 10 V.S.A. § 6523(h) shall be under the authority of the secretary of natural resources and shall be for energy conservation and alternative energy projects at state parks pursuant to Sec. 12(e)(2) of this act.

Third: In Sec. 37(d), in the third sentence, by striking out the following “commissioner of mental health” and inserting in lieu thereof the following commissioner of buildings and general services

(Committee vote: 7-0-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for April 1, 2010, page 724; April 2, 2010, page 769.)

**PROPOSAL OF AMENDMENT TO H. 790 TO BE OFFERED BY
SENATOR ILLUZZI**

Senator Illuzzi moves that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: By adding a new section to be numbered Sec. 19a to read as follows;
Sec. 19a. SALE OR LEASE OF THE JOHN H. BOYLAN STATE AIRPORT

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of 5 V.S.A. § 204(3), the secretary of transportation is authorized to sell or lease the John H. Boylan state airport to the town of Brighton or to the Vermont Renewable Energy Company, LLC, d/b/a Vermont Biomass Energy (or its assignee) at fair market value.

(b) The state shall retain an ownership interest in the area which may be used as a helipad on the property that is accessible for authorized uses.

(c) The property shall be conveyed subject to a condition that the property will revert to the state of Vermont on terms and conditions negotiated by the parties.

(d) Any purchaser or lessor shall agree to accept assignment of the state of Vermont’s interest in current leases on the property.

(e) In the event that the town of Brighton or Vermont Biomass Energy (or its assignee) does not purchase or lease the entire parcel, the secretary of

transportation is authorized to sell the residence and up to an acre of associated land on the airport property to the highest bidder, provided that the residence and land shall not be sold for less than fair market value.

(f) Proceeds from the state of Vermont's sales or leases authorized by this section shall be deposited into the transportation fund, except for up to \$5,000.00 which may be used by the agency of transportation to create a memorial park at a location mutually agreed upon by the town of Brighton and by the agency to commemorate the contributions to the state of Vermont of the late Senator John H. Boylan and the late Essex District Probate Court Judge Lena Boylan.

Second: By amending Sec. 20(b) after the following: "transfer" the following: 19a

ORDERED TO LIE

S. 99.

An act relating to amending the Act 250 criteria relating to traffic, scattered development, and rural growth areas.

S. 110.

An act relating to sheltering livestock.

S. 226.

An act relating to medical marijuana dispensaries.

H. 331.

An act relating to technical changes to the records management authority of the Vermont State Archives and Records Administration.

CONFIRMATIONS

The following appointments will be considered by the Senate, as a group, under suspension of the Rules, as moved by the President *pro tempore*, for confirmation together and without debate, by consent thereby given by the Senate. However, upon request of any senator, any appointment may be singled out and acted upon separately by the Senate, with consideration given to the report of the Committee to which the appointment was referred, and with full debate; and further, all appointments for the positions of Secretaries of Agencies, Commissioners of Departments, Judges, Magistrates, and members of the Public Service Board shall be fully and separately acted upon.

Jonathan Wood of Cambridge - Secretary of the Agency of Natural Resources - By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Jonathan Wood of Cambridge - Secretary of the Agency of Natural Resources - By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Justin Johnson of Barre - Commissioner of the Department of Environmental Conservation - By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Wayne Allen Laroche of Franklin - Commissioner of the Department of Fish & Wildlife - By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Jason Gibbs of Duxbury - Commissioner of the Department of Forests, Parks & Recreation - By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Jason Gibbs of Duxbury – Commissioner of the Department of Forests, Parks & Recreation – By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Richard A. Westman of Cambridge – Commissioner of the Department of Taxes – By Senator MacDonald for the Committee on Finance. (3/16/10)

Bruce Hyde of Granville – Commissioner of the Department of Tourism & Marketing – By Sen. Ashe for the Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs. (3/24/10)

Kevin Dorn of Essex Junction – Secretary of the Agency of Commerce & Community Development – By Sen. Illuzzi for the Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs. (3/24/10)

Tayt Brooks of St. Albans – Commissioner of the Department of Economic, Housing and Community Affairs – By Sen. Miller for the Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs. (3/24/10)